
Health Scrutiny in Dacorum

1

Wednesday 9 March 2016 at 7.30 pm
COUNCIL CHAMBER, CIVIC CENTRE, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD

Scrutiny making a positive difference: Member led and independent, Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee promote service improvements, influence policy development & hold Executive to 
account for the benefit of the Community of Dacorum.

The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time 
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Membership

Councillor Brown
Councillor Guest
Councillor Hicks
Councillor Maddern

Councillor McLean
Councillor Timmis
Councillor W Wyatt-Lowe

Outside Representatives:

Dacorum Hospital Action Group: B Harris
Patients’ Forum: Tony Gallagher, R Trigger 

Contributors:
Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group:  Dr Trevor Fernandes/ Dr K Hodge 
West Herts Hospitals Trust Care Quality Commission inspection: Helen Brown
Acute Hospital Care Vision - Gordon Yearwood and Kevin Minier
Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust - David Law, Chief Executive
Get, Set Go Dacorum: Ben Russell, Get Set Go Dacorum Project Manager 
HCC Health Scrutiny Update: Councillor Guest 
Hertfordshire County Council Health Localism/Health Wellbeing Board Update: Councillor W 
Wyatt-Lowe

 

For further information, please contact 

For further information please contact:  Louise Collins, Member Support Officer on tel:  01442 
228633, email:  louise.collins@dacorum.gov.uk. Information about the Council is also to be found 
on our website: www.dacorum.gov.uk.

Public Document Pack

http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/


2

AGENDA

1. MINUTES  

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 December 2015.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To receive any declarations of interest

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a personal interest in a matter who 
attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered -

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest 
becomes apparent

and, if the interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest, or a personal interest which is 
also prejudicial

(ii)may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter (and must withdraw 
to the public seating area) unless they have been granted a dispensation.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not 
registered in the Members’ Register of Interests, or is not the subject of a pending 
notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the 
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal and prejudicial interests are defined in Part 2 
of the Code of Conduct For Members

[If a member is in any doubt as to whether they have an interest which should be 
declared they should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the start of the 
meeting] 

4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

An opportunity for members of the public to make statements or ask questions in 
accordance with the rules as to public participation

5. WARD ISSUES FROM OTHER COUNCILLORS  

6. GET, SET, GO DACORUM  (Pages 4 - 7)

7. GOSSOMS END / TRING CLINIC  

David Law, Chief Executive, Hertfordshire Community NHS Trust to provide Members 
with an update on the Gossoms End / Tring Clinic.



3

8. ACUTE HOSPITAL CARE VISION  

Gordon Yearwood and Kevin Minier to provide an update on their idea of acute hospital 
care in West Herts. 

9. HERTS VALLEYS CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP UPDATE  

Dr Trevor Fernandes to provide Members with a Herts Valleys Clinical Conditioning 
Update since the last meeting held on 9 December 2015.

10. HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH LOCALISM/HEALTH WELLBEING 
BOARD UPDATE  

Councillor W Wyatt–Lowe to provide Members with an update since the last meeting. 

11. HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL HEALTH SCRUTINY UPDATE  (Pages 8 - 9)

12. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING  

The next meeting will be held on Wednesday 22 June 2016.

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

To consider passing a resolution in the following terms:

That, under s.100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12A Part 1 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 the 
public be excluded during the item in Part II of the Agenda for this meeting, because it 
is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that if members of the 
public were present, during this item there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information relating to: 

14. APPENDIX A, HEALTH IN DACORUM COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17  
(Pages 10 - 13)



Report for: Health in Dacorum Committee

Date of meeting: 09/03/16

PART: 1

If Part II, reason:

Title of report: Get set, go Dacorum

Contact:

Lead Contact: Ben Russell, Get set, go Dacorum Lead Officer
Portfolio Holder: Cllr Neil Harden, Portfolio Holder for Regulatory & 
Resident Services

Purpose of report: 1.   Monitoring and information

Recommendations 1. That members of the committee note the report and identify any 
areas where they require additional information.

Corporate objectives:

1. Community Capacity: enabling self-help and volunteering to build 
communities. 

2. Regeneration: developing skills and aspirations of local people. 
3. Dacorum Delivers: developing more effective ways of delivering 

services which meet customer expectations.
Implications:

‘Value For Money 
Implications’

Financial

£45,000 from reserves (approval granted October 2013)

Value for Money

The project seeks to increase sports participation in the 14+ age 
group. In Dacorum we aim to use sport as a mechanism for dealing 
with some of the social problems that we have in a holistic way.

£45,000 from DBC and £17,500 from Sportspace will provide the cash 
contribution needed to release £250,000 from Sport England and 
£77,500 of in-kind contributions from local voluntary sector groups.  
The total project cost over three year is £390,000 (including in-kind 
support) and will cater for approximately 2,500 residents in Dacorum 
aged 14+ over a three year period. This engagement is sustained 

AGENDA ITEM:  6
SUMMARY

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



engagement which aims to change the behaviour of participants, 
builds skills in the community and and build the infrastructure within 
the community to ensure that the projects last beyond the life of the 
funding. 

Increased physically activity leads to improved mental and physical 
wellbeing and therefore can contribute to a reduction in the need for 
other support services. 

Risk Implications Risk register reviewed on 04.06.2014

Equalities Implications  Equality impact assessment completed Jan 2014
 Publicity will be targeted at specific areas that demonstrate 

social problems but recruitment will be open to the wider 
community

 Extra funding will be targeted at training and development of 
existing providers to up skill i.e. equality and diversity training. 

 Two groups from the ‘protected characteristics’ will have 
targeted projects: heath inequalities and access issues for 
ethnic minority groups, access issues for disabled people.

Health And Safety 
Implications

 All providers will have appropriate public liability and 
insurance policies. 

 Service Level Agreements identify that the service provider will 
be responsible for Health and Safety procedures.

 Risk Assessments will be carried out by the service provider for 
each activity and submitted to Get, Set, Go Dacorum co-
ordinator.

Consultees: 30 partners from National Governing Bodies, District Partnerships, 
Sports Clubs and providers, Voluntary Sector, Children’s and 
Community Centre’s, Public Health, Clinical Commissioning Group, 
Housing Associations, ethnic minority groups and Secondary Schools 
attended two consultation workshops with the Council to develop the 
project. 

Questionnaires have been completed by;
 Students at Adeyfield School, Hemel and Cavendish School
 Families in Woodhall Farm 
 Ethnic minority groups
 Families at the Adventure Playground Play days 

Consultation and development of project is on-going through the 
three year programme. Additional consultation to take place in 
coming months;

 Targeted consultation of attendees of children’s centres
 Men from ethnic minority backgrounds
 Residents in rural areas

Page 5



Background papers:  Sports Policy Statement, Cabinet Report, 24 April 2012

 Community Sports Activation Fund Application, Cabinet 
Report, 22 October 2013

Historical background 

Community Sport Activation Fund
The Community Sport Activation Fund is a £40m revenue fund from Sport England which will:
• Enable people to create a sporting habit for life.
• Help stimulate local sports delivery. 
• Provide a flexible investment at a very local level.

The fund aims to:
• Increase once a week participation in sport by those aged 14 and above.
• Encourage and support local partners to work together to develop new approaches to delivery.
• Invest in projects that will deliver sustainable increases in participation.
• Support communities across England to help ensure sport becomes a regular part of the majority 

of people’s lives.

Social media 
 Facebook and twitter accounts have a growing following and are continually being publicised 

to increase networks (help publicise @getsetgodacorum)

Website
 Website has been created and was launched in April 2015 - www.getsetgodacorum.co.uk
 It includes a full calendar of events and activities which are running for the programme

Project updates
Sport England request a minimum of 2,500 participants to take part in projects which are funded 
£250,000. The annual target dates run from September 2015 to August 2016 in year two of the 
project.  The key performance indicator designed by Sport England focusses on the number of 
participants over 14 years old only. 

Attendances against target as at February 2016 (6 months into year two)

October 2015 start dates
 Adventure in the Playgrounds- 120% of annual target of 120
 Let’s Dance- 122% of annual target of 35
 Men’s Fitness Sessions- 100% of annual target of 15
 Go for fit- 56% of annual target of 30
 Family Fun Sessions- 30% off annual target of 90
 Adventure Playground Exercise to Music- 33% of annual target of 60
 Culturally Aware Fitness- 58% of annual target of 40
 Active Men- 92% of annual target of 50
 MST Football- 100% of annual target of 30
 Saturday with the Puffins- 80% of annual target of 15
 Rush Judo- 200% of annual target of 10

Page 6

http://www.getsetgodacorum.co.uk/


January 2016 start dates
 Active Intervention at Cavendish- 90% of annual target of 20 
 Stay with it programme- 37% of annual target of 30
 Family Fun after school- 72% of annual target of 25
 Teen Girls- 17% of annual target of 60
 Disability Sport match-  53% of annual target of 15

February 2016 start dates
 Xtreme Skates- 33% of annual target of 40
 Sport with the Elms Hostel- 53% of annual target of 15

March 2016 onwards start dates
 Back to Football- linking with new coaching team to deliver session
 Cycle your Family to Fitness – linking with Dacorum Cycle Hub with aim to launch April 2016
 Stay with it (Adeyfield Girls and Hemel School)- Confirming activities and start times with 

schools with delivery to commence shortly
 Youth Boxing- working with Box Cleva Charity to deliver sessions in Hemel ABC, starting 

March 2016
 Rehab & Referral fun- Linking with Hospice and Cancer group
 Xtreme Skates (Berkhamsted)- Skate park due for completion in June
 Swim to keep trim- advert for rolling 3 months offer has gone out
 Swimfit Tring- Commencing after February half term
 Kings Langley Family Fun- Working with local delivers to supply female only fitness sessions 

at Kings Langley School. Also working with primary school to implement family fun activity.
 Training for HLDGs- will begin in April during the build up to the Herts Learning Disability 

games

Developing the project
This is a new project and we are continuously developing, tailoring and re-profiling the project based 
on consultation results and feedback from partners. Any ideas or suggestions from stakeholders will 
be gratefully received at any time via getsetgo@dacorum.gov.uk. 

Glossary of acronyms and 
any other abbreviations 
used in this report:

CSAF – Community Sports Activation Fund

CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group

NGB – National Governing Bodies

Page 7

mailto:getsetgo@dacorum.gov.uk


Report of Dacorum Borough Council Representative on Hertfordshire 
Health Scrutiny Committee for Health in Dacorum Committee Meeting 
of 9th March 2016

The meeting of 16th December 2015 was attended by Cllr Jan Maddern 
substituting for the regular representative.

At the meeting of 21st January 2016 there was an update on the East of England 
Ambulance Service Trust (EEAST). Approximately 70 student paramedics have 
been recruited and continual recruitment is taking place but it takes 3 years to 
qualify as a paramedic.

For some years clinicians (paramedics, GPs and nurses) have been in control 
rooms to assist in triage, and it has been decided to greatly increase their 
numbers.

Concerns were raised by Committee members about missed targets for response 
times. It was stated by EEAST that if an ambulance arrives within the target 
time with a less qualified crew, and the wrong equipment and drugs it is classed 
as a “success”. However if the ambulance arrives just outside the target time, but 
with well-qualified staff and the right equipment and drugs it is classed as a 
“failure”.

It was asked what was the single reason for not meeting response times. The 
reply was that all ambulance trusts are under the R2 target (8 minute response 
time 75% of the time for potentially life threatening conditions eg stroke). The 
EEAST representative questioned whether the target was appropriate and said 
that more ambulances would be needed to meet targets.

Delays of transfer at hospitals is an issue but EEAST is working with acute 
hospitals in Herts and Beds to address this issue.

If the 111 service deems a patient to have a potentially life-threatening 
condition, the computer automatically passes the case to the ambulance service. 
Herts is below that national target of 9% of 111 calls being referred to the 
ambulance service. In Herts and Beds, 48% of calls that EEAST attend do not 
result in a patient being conveyed to hospital.

There are still first responders, trained lay volunteers who can be phoned or 
texted in the case of a cardiac arrest or other emergency where a patient needs 
treatment very quickly.

Satnavs on ambulances are as up-to-date as possible. If 999 is phoned from a 
landline, the location automatically goes to the ambulance and is uploaded onto 
the satnav.

Page 8

Agenda Item 11



The health budgets and quality of care (Francis) scrutiny café will take place 
over two days in March 2016. There will be two themes.

Fiona Guest
Dacorum Representative on Hertfordshire County Council Health Scrutiny 
Committee

Page 9



HEALTH IN DACORUM COMMITTEE: Work Programme 2015/16 

Scrutiny making a positive difference: Member led and independent, Overview & Scrutiny Committee promote service improvements, influence policy 
development & hold Executive to account for the benefit of the Community of Dacorum.

Date: Items: Contact details: Background information Outcome of Discussion

22 June 
2016

 Health & Localism / Health & 
Wellbeing Board Update

Councillor W Wyatt – Lowe To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 HCC Health Scrutiny Update Councillor Guest To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 Get, Set, Go Dacorum 
Project

Ben Russell and Alex Care To provide an update.

Childhood obesity Elizabeth Biggs To provide Members with an 
update since 7th January 2015

14 
September 

2016
 Health & Localism / Health & 

Wellbeing Board Update
Councillor W Wyatt – Lowe To provide an update since the last 

meeting.

 HCC Health Scrutiny Update Councillor Guest To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 Health and Social Care 
Services

Tim Hamilton To provide an update since the last 
meeting

 Patient Services Tim Hamilton To provide Members with an 
update since the last meeting.

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 14



HEALTH IN DACORUM COMMITTEE: Work Programme 2015/16 

Scrutiny making a positive difference: Member led and independent, Overview & Scrutiny Committee promote service improvements, influence policy 
development & hold Executive to account for the benefit of the Community of Dacorum.

 Get, Set, Go Dacorum Ben Russell and Alex Care To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 West Hertfordshire 
Strategic Review of Health

David Radbourne To provide Members with an 
update. 

7 
December 

2016

 HVCCG Update NHS Hertfordshire - Dr 
Fernandes & Interim Chief 
Operating Officer, Nicola Bell

To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 Health & Localism / Health & 
Wellbeing Board Update

Councillor W Wyatt – Lowe To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 HCC Health Scrutiny Update Councillor Guest To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 Get, Set, Go Dacorum Ben Russell and Alex Care To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

P
age 11



HEALTH IN DACORUM COMMITTEE: Work Programme 2015/16 

Scrutiny making a positive difference: Member led and independent, Overview & Scrutiny Committee promote service improvements, influence policy 
development & hold Executive to account for the benefit of the Community of Dacorum.

West Hertfordshire Strategic 
Review of Health

David Radbourne To provide an update since the last 
meeting. 

WHHT CQC inspection report. Helen Brown
Director at WHHT

To provide an update on the Care 
Quality Commission Inspection 
report.

01 March 
2017

 HVCCG Update NHS Hertfordshire - Dr 
Fernandes & Interim Chief 
Operating Officer, Nicola Bell

To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 Health & Localism / Health 
& Wellbeing Board Update

Councillor W Wyatt – Lowe To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 HCC Health Scrutiny 
Update

Councillor Guest To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

 Get, Set, Go Dacorum Ben Russell and Alex Care To provide an update since the last 
meeting.

Childhood Obesity Elizabeth Biggs and Sue 
Beck 

To provide an update since the last 
meeting on 7th January 2015

P
age 12



HEALTH IN DACORUM COMMITTEE: Work Programme 2015/16 

Scrutiny making a positive difference: Member led and independent, Overview & Scrutiny Committee promote service improvements, influence policy 
development & hold Executive to account for the benefit of the Community of Dacorum.

Consideration for Future Items/Meetings: 

1. TB Awareness in the UK
2. DBC Masterplan

Regular Invitees

 Cllr Harden

 Sally Marshall

 Steve Baker

P
age 13


	Agenda
	6 Get, Set, Go Dacorum
	11 Hertfordshire County Council Health Scrutiny Update
	14 Appendix A, Health in Dacorum Committee Work Programme 2016/17

